A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, July 22, 2014
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 7-17-14

4:00 p.m.




Light and Power Board 2 July 22, 2014
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is 1o expedite business by grouping non-controversial items fogether
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefron and placed elsewhere on the agenda
for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action
adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 24, 2014. (Approval
recommended) (p. 3)

b. Consideration of adopting a Resolution to Amend Board Rule 2. (Approval
recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p. 6)

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

3. Old Business

None.

4. New Business

a. Consideration of M-72 Wind Turbine Sale Counter Offer (Arends) (p. 12)

5. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
None.
b. From Staff.

1. Transmission Underground vs. Overhead cost comparison. (Arends) (p. 18)

2. 2013-14 Capital Improvements Plan annual report to Board. (Arends/staff) (p. 25)

3. 2013 Energy Optimization and Renewable Energy annual report to Board.
(Wheaton) (p. 33)

4. 2013-14 Third quarter financial report. (Myers-Beman) (p. 42)

5. Cherry Festival Renewable Energy Program. (Wheaton) (verbal)

c. From Board.

6. Public Comment
/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, June 24, 2014

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Jan Geht, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence, John
Taylor
Absent: Patrick McGuire
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, Scott Menhart, ] }'la’l\::&yé;'s=-]3:§ an, Tom Olney, Kelli

Schroeder, Stephanie Tvardek; Jessica Wheaton, Blake Wilson

a. Consideration of renewal e AT&T Phone Contract.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Scott Menhart, Manager of Telecom and Technology

Moved by Geht, seconded by Budros, that the Board authorizes the Executive Director to
execute a three year contract with AT&T in the amount of $19,080.

CARRIED unanimously. (McGuire absent)

Item 3 on the Agenda being Old Business

a. Public Hearing regarding proposed rate increase July 1, 2014,

The following individuals addressed the Board:




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 June 24, 2014

Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Tim Arends, Executive Director

The Chairman opened the Public Hearing:
The following individuals from the public addressed the Board:

Michael Estes, Mayor of Traverse City, Ratepayer, Expressed Support
Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Stieet, Ratepayer — Expressed Support

The Chairman closed the Public Hearing

Board discussion followed.

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that the Board a
service rate increase with a bandwidth increase and decie
by Utility Financial Solutions along with the housgkééping changes
presented, effective July 1, 2014, '

zes an overall 1.5% electric
more than 1.3% as proposed
be implemented, as

CARRIED unanimously. (McGuire absent)

Ttem 4 on the Agenda being New Bu

From Legal Counss G
None.
B. From Staff.

1. Tim Arends and Michael McGeehan, GRP Engineering, Inc. reviewed the need for
the West Side Transmission Line.

Chairman Taylor asked for the Board’s approval to suspend the board rules and allow public
comment after item 5B1.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 June 24, 2014

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Spence, that the board rules be suspended to allow public
comment after item 5B1.

CARRIED unanimously. (McGuire absent)

Item 6 on the Agenda being Public Comment

Emily Mitchell, 3716 Jefferson, Hickory Meadows Advisory Committee, Non-Ratepayer
Rick Buckhalter, 932 Kelley Street, Ratepayer

Nicole Gerard, 2973 Concord Street, Hickory Meadows Advisory Committee, Non-Ratepayer
Barbara Solmonson, 119 North Madison, Ratepayer
Mike Sleeman, 3680 Incochee Rd,

Cynthia Burzak, Elmwood/Wayne, Ratepayer

Mike Gaines, 425 North Madison, Ratepayer

Jamie Al-Shamma, 131 North Elmwood, Ratepayer
Pat Joseph, 502 North Spruce

General discussion amongst Board and staff contjnt

Item S on the Agenda being Reports and Communications (contin{ie_

6:55 p.m. Chairman Taylor called the meeting to
7:01 p.m. Chairman Taylor called the fneeting to or

sulting and Howard Axelrod.

C.

ion of the July 8, 2014 regular meeting. It was

There being 110 objection, Chaifman Téyl@ﬁ}:declared the meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretary
/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller W‘)
Date: July 9,2014
Subject: Board Rules Adoption

At a previous meeting, legal counsel noticed staff was not following the order of business (Rule # 2) as
presented in the Rules of the Traverse City Light and Power Board. The order of business was being
presented with the below modifications:

I. Number three was changed from Old Business to Unfinished Business.
2. Staff added Appointments.
3. Staff modified number seven from Board and Public Comment to Public Comment.

Presented below is the proposed new order of business to be adopted and changed in the Rules of the
Traverse City Light and Power Board.

2. Order of Business and Agenda for Regular Meetings. The order of business and agenda for regular
meetings of the Board shall be as follows:

Roll Call
Consent Calendar
Unfinished Business
New Busiress
Appointments
Reports and Communications
7. Public Comment
This item is appearing on the consent calendar as staff deems it to be a non-controversial
housekeeping matter, and recommends the Board adopts the modifications to Rule #2 of the
Traverse City Light and Power Board Rules. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar
means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

AN

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the agenda as an item under Items Removed from the
Consent Calendar. If after Board discussion you agree with staft’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT AN
AMENDMENT TO RULE #2 OF THE TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

RULES, ORDER OF BUSINESS AND AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETINGS BE ADOPTED.




RULES OF THE TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Adopted July 28, 1998
Amended February 8, 2011, Rule 11
Amended July 22, 2014, Rule 2

Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Light and Power Board shall be held on the
second and fourth Tuesdays of every month at 5:15 P.M. in the Commission Chambers of
the Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City.

Order of Business and Agenda for Regular Meetings. The order of business and agenda
for regular meetings of the Board shall be as follows:

1. Roll Call
Consent Calendar

2
3. Old BusinessUnfinished Business
4

New Business

4.5.  Appointments

5.6.  Reports and Communications

6-7. Board and Public Comment

Unless there is an objection by a Board member, the Chairman may alter the order of
business.

Agenda and Packets. A written agenda and a packet of supporting materials shall be
prepared by the Executive Director for every regular meeting, and shall be completed and
released for delivery to the members of the Board not later than 5:00 P.M. on the Monday
immediately preceding the date of said regular meeting.

Special Meetings and Special Business. Special meetings may be called by the Chairman
or any two (2) Board members, or by the Executive Director, upon 18 hours posting and
advance written notice to all Board members. Special meetings shall consider only such
matters as are specified in the notice of the meeting, unless all voting members are
present and a motion is passed pursuant to these Rules. Unless there is an objection by a
Board member, the Chairman may alter the order of business. The Board may direct by a
majority vote that any matter may be made the special business of a future meeting and
the same shall have precedence over all other business at such meeting.

Consent Calendar.

A, When the Executive Director determines that any item of business requires action
by the Light and Power Board, but is of a routine and non-controversial nature,

Page 1 of 5




the Executive Director may cause such item to be presented at a regular meeting
of the Light and Power Board as part of a Consent Calendar.

B. The Consent Calendar shall be introduced by a motion to approve the Consent
Calendar, and shall be considered by the Light and Power Board as a single item.

C. There shall be no debate or discussion by any member of the Light and Power
Board, regarding any item on the Consent Calendar, beyond asking questions for
simple clarification.

D. On request by any Light and Power Board member, staff or member of the public
present to inclusion of any item on the Consent Calendar, that item shall be
removed from the Consent Calendar. Such request may be recorded at any time
prior to the taking of a vote on the motion to approve the Consent Calendar. All
such items shall be considered individually at a place, on the agenda, determined
by the Presiding Officer.

E., Approval of the motion to approve the Consent Calendar shall be fully equivalent
to approval, adoption, or enactment of each motion, resolution, ordinance, or
other item of business thereon, exactly as if each had been acted upon
individually.

Presiding Officer. The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, and in the absence of the
Chairman, the Vice-Chairman shall preside. If both the Chairman and the Vice-
Chairman are absent, the Secretary shall call the Board to order and shall preside until a
presiding officer is chosen. If the Secretary is absent, a majority of the Board then
present shall select a Presiding Officer.

Rules of Order. The most current and authorized edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall
govern the conduct of meetings unless modified by these Rules. The Presiding Officer
shall decide all questions arising under these Rules and general parliamentary practice
subject to appeal, which appeal shall be determined by a majority of the members
present. In the event an appeal is taken by any member from the ruling of the Presiding
Officer, the member of the Board desiring to appeal shall state that he claims an appeal
from the ruling of the Presiding Officer and shall state briefly what, in his opinion, the
ruling should have been. If this appeal is seconded, the Presiding Officer shall state
clearly the question at issue, and shall then call for the vote of the Board on the question:
“Shall the decision of the Presiding Officer be sustained?” The Presiding Officer shall
preserve order and decorum and may speak to points of order in preference to other
questions. The Presiding Officer may express an opinion on any subject under debate
without the substitution of another Presiding Officer.

Page 2 of 5




10.

11.

Motions. Every motion or resolution shall require a second before being put to a vote,
and it shall not be debated until it shall be reduced to writing if requested by the presiding
officer or any member, but it may be withdrawn at any time by the movant with consent
of the second before decision or amendment. No motion to reconsider shall be
entertained unless made by a member voting with the majority.

Amendment of Agenda at Regular Meetings. At a regular meeting, and as the first item
after Roll Call, any official or officials of the Department, acting as such, may ask, orally
or in writing, that a certain matter or matters be added to the agenda for consideration by
the Board at that meeting. By motion that the matter or matters in question be added to
the agenda of that meeting, passed by the concurring vote of not less than four (4) Board
members, the matter or matters may be added to the agenda under an appropriate order of
business and may be considered at that regular meeting.

Amendment of Agenda at Special Meetings. At a special meeting, and as the first item
after Roll Call, any official or officials of the Department, acting as such, may ask, orally
or in writing, that a certain matter or matters not appearing in the notice of that meeting
as posted and released for delivery to the members of the Board be considered by the
Board at that meeting. By motion that the matter or matters in question be considered at
that meeting, passed by the concurring vote of not less than five (5) Board members, any
such matters may be considered at that special meeting.

Public Comment. The Light and Power Board welcomes public comment and has
prescribed the following to facilitate the conduct of public business.

Public Comment during Agenda Items. At any regular or special meeting, any
interested person may address the Board on any agenda item if recognized by the
Presiding Officer or upon request of any Board member. For any agenda item
requiring action of the Board at that meeting other than the Consent Calendar, the
Presiding Officer shall, before any final vote is taken, ask for and conduct public
comment on that agenda item. Any interested person may address the Board on
any matter of Department concern during the agenda item designated Public
Comment. The comment of any member of the public or any special interest
group may be limited in time as provided in subsection (E). As part of its
deliberation, the Board may clarify, answer questions and ask questions as a result
of public comment.

Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section — Reserved.
Any interested person or special interest group wishing to address the Board for a
reserved time shall submit a written request to the Executive Director no later
than Tuesday, 5:00 P.M, the week immediately preceding the date of said regular
meeting. The communication shall (1) identify the writer’s name and address and

Page 3 of 5



(2) identify with reasonable specificity the subject matter. The same shall appear
on the written agenda under the designated “Public Comment” section for said
regular meeting as made available to the news media and released for delivery to
the Board. All persons must identify themselves and will be asked their address
and to direct their comments to the Board. The comment of any member of the
public or special interest group may be limited to 15 minutes except as provided
in subsection (E). Questions posed may be answered at the meeting or may be
referred to staff for response at a later time.

Reserved time shall be limited to one (1) per meeting and shall appear on the
written agenda. A TCL&P ratepayer or city taxpayer shall take precedence over a
non-TCL&P ratepayer or non-city taxpayer request. In such case, the non-
TCL&P ratepayer or non-city taxpayer request shall be postponed and placed on
the written agenda of a future meeting as selected by the non-TCL&P
ratepayetr/non-city taxpayer. In no case shall the non-TCL&P ratepayer/non-city
taxpayer request be postponed more than one time in favor of a TCL&P ratepayer
or city taxpayer. If more than one (1) request is received per meeting the requests
shall be considered in the order they were received; subject to the above
procedure.

Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section — General. Any
interested person wishing to address the Board regarding other matters may do so
under the designated Public Comment section. All persons must identify
themselves and will be asked their address and to direct their comments to the
Board. The comment of any member of the public or any special interest group
may be limited in time as provided in subsection (E).

Public Comment during the designated Public Comment Section — Board Chair
and Board Members. The Board Chair and other Board Members interested in
making a public comment may do so under the designated Public Comment
section. Further, the Board Chair and Board Members may briefly respond for
clarification purposes as a result of public comment.

Order and Duration of any Public Comment. The comment of any member of the
public or special interest group may be limited in time by the Presiding Officer.
The Presiding Officer shall have the authority to limit and terminate any public
comment that becomes disruptive, unduly repetitive, or impedes the orderly
progress of the meeting. The Presiding Officer shall control the order and
duration of any public comment, subject to appeal.

Page 4 of 5

10




12.

13.

Suspension of Rules. The Rules may be suspended on the vote of five (5) members. The
Rules may be amended by a majority vote of the members elect at a meeting held after
the meeting at which the amendment was proposed.

Executive Director Spending Authority. The Executive Director shall have authority to
expend up to one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) of current budget year total expenses, per
transaction, involving the acquisition and disposal of personal property pursuant to City
Charter Section 179(a) without the necessity of Board approval or securing competitive
bids. Such authority shall also supply to the acquisition of services in furtherance of
Light and Power activities.

Page 5 of 5

11




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: July 16, 2014
Subject: Consideration of M-72 Wind Turbine Counterproposal

Late last year the Board authorized the decommissioning of the M-72 Wind Turbine,
Through the decommissioning process staff received pricing on turbine removal and site
remediation, along with estimates on the scrap value of the unit. The net impact of removal,
including site remediation, is reasonably estimated at $160K.

Staff then initiated a competitive bidding process for the sale of the turbine and received one
offer from Heritage Sustainable Energy (“Heritage” - the company that owns Stoney Corners
Wind Farm in McBain, MI that TCL&P purchases its renewable energy). That offer is
included in your packet for your review.

In analyzing the overall impact of selling the turbine for $1,100 and the other conditions
stated in the offer, including negotiating a power purchase agreement for TCL&P to buy the
output from the unit, staff believes this one bid to be the best option in going forward with
the least cost impact to the utility.

General Counsel has assisted staff in preparing a counterproposal for your consideration of
approval. Heritage will have 60 days to inspect the unit and make a determination on
following through with its offer to purchase. If their decision is to proceed with the purchase,
staff will negotiate a power purchase agreement for the Board’s consideration of approval.
Please provide direction, if any, on expectations the Board may have in that agreement.

For your information, there have been two more interested parties in the turbine since the
competitive bidding process closed. Staff has not talked specifics with these individuals,
however, indicated that should the offer on the table fall through the utility would reopen the
bidding process and notify them. In light of this development, it may be the desire of the
Board to reject all bids to-date and rebid the sale of the unit at this time. If that is the
pleasure of the Board, a no vote on the below staff recommended motion would be
appropriate.

Because the offer from Heritage keeps this historic unit in its current location, providing
renewable energy to TCL&P, and has become a landmark gateway to Leelanau County, staff
believes a counteroffer is appropriate. Removing the utility from ownership of the unit also
removes the responsibility of operation and maintenance costs from TCL&P, and the utility’s

12




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

liability of future costs of removal/remediation/replacement (which one day will be required,
of course).

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would

be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDID BY )
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THI CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
COUNTERPROPOSAL TO HERITAGE SUSTAINABLE ENERGY FOR THE SALE OF THE
M-72 WIND TURBINE; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

13




Counterproposal for Purchasing M-72 Wind Turbine

Offer:

The Traverse City Light and Power Department (TCL&P) offers to sell and assign related
easements to Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC (Heritage), upon the following terms and
contingencies:

1. Price. The price shall be $1,100 (One Thousand One Hundred Dollars).
2, M-72 Wind Turbine. The M-72 Wind Turbine shall include all related components,

software, spare parts, transformers, and the electrical connection at the turbine to the
transmission line which shall remain the property of TCL&P.

3. First Stage Contingencies. Within 60 (sixty) calendar days after written acceptance of
this offer, Heritage shall have satisfied or waived the following contingencies:

a. Complete due diligence related to structural and mechanical inspection and
condition of the wind turbine and related components showing them to be in a
condition satisfactory to Heritage. All persons inspecting the windmill and
turbine generator will be required to execute a TCL&P Release of all Claims.

b. Review all TCL&P contractual agreements related to the turbine and related
components showing them to be in a condition satisfactory to Heritage.

c. Written waiver of the right of first refusal for the wind turbine generator by Terry
K. Lautner and Catheryn L. Lautner.

4. Second Stage Contingencies. Upon satisfaction or waiver of the above contingencies,
Heritage and TCL&P shall have 60 (sixty) days to agree in writing on the following:

a. A purchase power agreement for TCL&P to purchase power generated by the
wind turbine which may be assignable by either party.

b. Written conveyance documents and assignments for the wind turbine, related
components, and easements.

5. Unsatisfied or Un-waived Contingencies. If any of the above contingencies are not
satisfied or waived within the above time periods, either party upon written notice to the
other party, may cancel this agreement.

6. Closing. Upon satisfaction or waiver of all contingencies, closing and transfer shall
occur within seven (7) calendar days.

14




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
DEPARTMENT

Dated:
By: John Taylor
Its: Chairman
Dated:
By: Timothy J. Arends
Its: Secretary
Acceptance:

Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC, accepts Traverse City Light and Power Department’s
Counterproposal and agrees to purchase the M-72 Wind Turbine upon the terms as above stated.

HERITAGE SUSTAINABLE ENERGY,
LLC

Dated:

By: Rick Wilson
Its: Vice President of Operations

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE:

Timothy J. Arends
Executive Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

W. Peter Doren
General Counsel

15




RELEASE OI' ALL CLAIMS

The undersigned Participant, being of lawful age, in consideration of permission granted
to the undersigned by the TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT (TCL&P),
to participate in the touring of and climbing in the windmill and turbine generator, hereby
releases TCL&P, its officers and employees from all actions, causes of action, damages, rights,
costs, loss of service, claims, demands, expenses and compensation whatsoever, which the
undersigned, the undersigned’s heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns may have against
TCL&P, its officers and employees, for all personal injuries known or unknown which the
undersigned has or may incur by patticipating in the above-described activity.

The above activity is strenuous and I have consulted with my doctor and am not under
any medical advice to not undertake strenuous activity or climbing.

T HAVE READ THIS RELEASE, UNDERSTAND ALL ITS TERMS AND EXECUTE
IT VOLUNTARILY AND WITH FULL KNOWLEDGE OF ITS SIGNIFICANCE. I
UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING THIS FORM, 1 ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE ABOVE
ACTIVITIES HAVE CERTAIN RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THEM AND I FULLY
UNDERSTAND THOSE RISKS AND AM WILLING TO ACCEPT THEM.

Signed this day of , 20

CAUTION: READ BEFORE SIGNING

Witness: Participant:
Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
[print] [print]
Address:
Telephone:

16




( Heritage

— Sustainable Energy

June 16, 2014

Bid Proposal for: Purchasing of the M-72 Wind Turbine

Heritage Sustainable Energy, LLC (“Heritage”) shall pay one thousand one hundred dollars ($1,100.00)
for the purchase of the TCLP wind turbine in Section 31, T28N-R11W, EImwood Township, Leelanau [
County, Michigan inclusive of, but not limited to, all related components, software, spare parts,
transformer(s), assignment of valid land use permits and land use agreements (including the 1995
Easement for Electrical Facilities that was granted to TCLP), interconnection cable and interconnection
to the TCLP distribution system.

Closing of this acquisition will only occur if Heritage, at Heritage’s sole discretion, is satisfied that the
following contingencies have been met:

1) Heritage shall have 60 days to complete its due diligence related to the structural and
mechanical condition of the wind turbine and related components;

2) TCLP will make available, and Heritage will have 45 days to complete a review of any TCLP
contractual agreements related to the wind turbine and/or related components;

3) Heritage and TCLP shall have 60 days to agree to a mutually acceptable offtake agreement
related to any future power generated by the wind turbine and its input into the TCLP electrical
distribution system.

4) Heritage and TCLP shall have 60 days to agree to a mutually acceptable assignment and bill of
sale for the wind turbine and related components.

Once Heritage acknowledges that the contingency issues stated above have been satisfied, then the
closing and transfer of the wind turbine and related components from TCLP to Heritage will occur within
seven (7) days. Upon closing Heritage will assume full decommissioning liability of the wind turbine and
the restoration of the turbine site.

Vice President of Operations

121 East Front Street, Suite 200, Traverse City, Michigan 49684
Telephone: 231-935-4500 Facsimile: 231-929-0242
www.heritagewindenergy.com

17



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director and Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: July 16, 2014 W
Subject: Transmission Undergrounding vs. Overhead Comparison

Enclosed is information on the financial impact of bonding for undergrounding TCL&P’s
transmission system. As the utility moves forward with the process in determining the extent of
replacing the aged west side transmission line this analysis is relevant if the Board has a desire to
have a long range plan of moving all transmission lines underground.

GRP Engineering provided TCL&P staff the amount it would cost to replace the transmission
system overhead and underground. The cost of overhead replacement is $4,312,750 and the cost
of underground is $52,445,000, respectively. GRP Engineering performed simple calculations of
taking the cost per mile based on the actual cost of undergrounding from the recent Bay Street
transmission line undergrounding project. They assumed normal overhead and underground
conditions and did not take into consideration any extreme site condition issues that may arise
during the actual engineering of the line design.

In calculating the effects of the capital and financing costs to replace the transmission line
system on customer rates, staff determined the revenue required for the capital improvement
projects through the target operating income method. This analysis is for the next thirty years,
the life of the bond and not the full life of the asset, which will extend an additional eight years.

As part of this process staff prepared two thirty-year projected operating income and cash flow
statements (one for transmission overhead project and one for transmission underground project)
with the goal of meeting a target operating income that covered the amount of interest expense
on debt and a rate of return on net book value of 5% with the objective to recover asset
replacement costs. The purpose of this is to be able to provide coverage of debt payments and
expense the project to the rate payers who are benefiting from the capital improvement instead of
moving it to future generations and to ensure the funds are available in the future when the
replacement of the capital improvement is needed.

Staff followed this method solely and did not take into consideration the utility’s minimum cash

reserves balances in calculating the rate increases, because staff wanted to provide a full cost
picture.

18 REVISED




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

In the thirty-year projection the following assumptions were made:

L.

Other operating revenues increased in the year 2015-2016 and 2020-2021 to reflect the
capital additions on the Attachment O (MISO Revenue) for the East Hammond
Substation and the new transmission line system. Staff was conservative in only
including the cost of the transimission overhead costs and not transmission underground
costs because undergrounding is not required for the system to operate and most likely
would not be approved by MISO.

Load growth was estimated at 1%, typically it has been around 2% in the past, and staff
has reduced it to account for the effects of energy optimization.

Inflationary increases for goods and services except for capital improvements are 2%.
Capital improvements inflationary increases are at 3.2% based on information provided
during Utility Financial Solutions cost of service study at the March 25, 2014 board
meeting.

Bond payment schedule was based on the GRP Engineering’s underground cost and
amortized over thirty years at 3.5%, the current municipal bond rate on
www.bloomberg.com.

The analysis is purely calculating the revenue requirement with an equal increase to all
rates and not based on cost of service.

As mentioned previously, staff prepared two analyses of the operating statements and cash flows
that incorporate the assumptions above; one is for the transmission underground project where
bonding is required and the other includes the transmission overhead replacement capital project
within the TCL&P’s normal capital improvement plan. The difference between the two analyses
provides the information on the rate impact on customers to bond and construct the transmission
underground system.

The funds to be recovered over thirty years are as follows:

Changes in operating income target

1. Interest expense from the bond $32,683,807
2. Rate of return on net book value for underground 41,593,970
3. Less rate of return on net book value for overhead (3,369,262)

Changes in operating statement

1. Additional depreciation costs 41,362,365
2. Additional city fee expense 6,118,972
Total 118.389.852

19 REVISED




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

Range of monthly impact on customer rates are as follow:

Customer Class Year?2 Year 15 Year 30
Average residential $1.60 $8.40 $10.76
Average commercial 4.31 22.58 28.95
Average commercial demand 28.67 150.24 192.65
Average industrial 526.77 2,760.28 3,539.41

A spreadsheet is attached showing the average bill for residential, commercial, commercial
demand and industrial and the percentage rate increases needed to recover the revenue to fund
this project for thirty years.

At the conclusion of the presentation, staff will be seeking direction from the Board on whether
or not it is interested in having staff prepare a board policy that includes a plan for
undergrounding the utility’s transmission system. If that is the desire of the Board, it will be
incorporated into next year’s capital plan and the west side transmission line upgrade
project/process will be put on hold until that capital plan can be approved by the Planning
Commission and City Commission.

20 REVISED




102/84/9 PItNGSY 2UlT-1 pesodoid LO'89SO-EL
000'SHH'2S$ 0SL°ZIEYS 150D [B301 pajewsy
000'150'8% 00Z'19% sa|lw 9g'} 1984g ssBD qng pY $sBD O} UoKOUN PY SSBD 8102
005'255'S$ 050°£2¥$ seiu 21"} Yyiam L / 1Sna07 / UHOMSPEAA uofounr Py $seD G} qNS 198RS IIBH L1L0Z
00S°L09'21$ 005'8t6% so|IW LL'2 WYBIg / 813918 / YBUUBH [ 8ACIS  $5800Y Hodily g Suosied o} ounf moleg /102
000°629'6% 005'25.% sa|lw G1'Z 1S mojeg / Jatuerden uonounr mojleg o) gns yinog 9102
000°095'¥$ 00S'0.£$ sow 1 P Jotuelqe / puoliwen ang Yinog o} peoy suolsisy G102
000'000'Z1 % 00000Z'L$ So[iW 0Z'€ 1S suABAA / S|IIH AOMOIH / Asusey gns 1ea43 lleH o} qng peoy 4819 5102
1800 9N 1S00 HO Emcm.._ mhmgvmom_ uondag aur JBaA
pajewss3 pajewns3

SATING3Y ANIT NOISSINSNYYL Ad69 A3S0d0xd

HIMOd @ LHOIT ALID SSHIAVYL

~
N



Traverse City Light and Power

Transmission Project Undergrounding

puy4,204 N |
Rate Increases with Transmission Overhead Project Rate Increases with Transmission Underground Project
Monthly Cost of | Monthly Cost of Average Monthly Cost of Monthly Cost of | Monthly Cost of Average Monthly Cost of
Average Average Commercial Average Average Average Commercial Average
Year Rate Increase Residential Bill | Commercial Bill Demand Bill Industrial Bill Year Rate Increase Residential Bill | Commercial Bill Demand Bill Industrial Bill

2015 66.88 177.97 1,206.09 | 22,443.40 2015 66.88 177.97 1,206.09 22,443.40

2016 67.71 180.11 1,221.47 | 22,740.27 2016 67.71 | 180.11 |  1,221.47 22,740.27

2017 2.50% 70.94 188.34 1,281.54 | 23,913.67 2017 5.00% 72.55 192.65 1,310.21 24,440.44

2018| 72.09 191.18 1,303.12 | 24,344.19 2018 73.71 19554 |  1,332.07 24,876.23

2019 2.50% 74.93 198.59 1,355.06 25,333.63 2019 5.00% 78.32 207.71 1,415.75 26,448.65

2020 76.13 201.58 137772 | 25,786.09 2020 79.55 210.79 1,439.02 26,912.25

2021 2.25% 78.93 208.86 1,429.01 26,765.36 2021 4.85% 84.38 223.51 1,526.52 28,556.91
2022 80.19 211.99 | 1,452.78 27,240.17 2022 8569 226.79 1,551.27 29,049.63
2023 2.13% 83.02 21936 |  1,504.83 28,235.68 2023 4.77% 90.78 240.21 1,643.58 30,784.75

2024 84.34 222.64 1,529.74 | 28,733.56 2024) _ 92.17 | 243.70 1,669.88 31,308.13

2025 1.00%| ~ 86.45 228.02 1,568.73 | 29,491.07 2025 1.00% 94.44 249.51 1,711.68 32,117.38

2026 1 87.82 231.43 1,594.68 30,010.22 - 2026] 95.89 253.13 | 1,739.06 32,662.79

2027 | 89.22 234.90 1,621.09 30,539.04 2027 9737 |  256.82 | 1,766.91 33,218.14
2028 ,‘ 90.64 238.43 1,647.98 31,077.72 2028 98.87 260.56 | 1,795.26 33,783.61 |

2029 i 92.09 242.01 1,675.35 31,626.46 2029 ~ 100.40 264.37 | 1,824.10 34,359.41

2030 l 93.56 245.66 | 1,703.21 | 32,185.44 2030 101.95 268.23 | 1,853.45 34,945.72

2031 1.00%| 95.87 251,56 1,746.18 | 33,023.26 2031 1.00%] 104.44 274.59 | 1,899.44 35,839.02

2032 9740 255.34 1,775.20 33,606.02 2032 ' 106.05 278.61 | 1,929.99 36,449.94
2033 1.25% 100.01 262.02 | 1,823.55 34,545.31 2033 1.25% 108.86 285.81 | 1,981.85 37,453.57
2034 - 101.61 265.97 1,853.81 | 35,153.49 2034 110.54 290.00 | 2,013.69 38,090.84

2035 1.25% 104.32 272.90 1,935.59 | 36,130.02 2035 1.25% 113.46 297.47 | 2,100.73 39,133.82

2036 105.98 277.01 1,935.59 | 36,764.66 2036 115.21 301.82 | 2,100.73 39,798.50
2037 1.25% 108.80 | 28420 193559 37,779.85 2037 1.25% 118.23 309.58 | 2,100.73 40,882.33 |
2038 ] 110.53 288.48 2,020.67 38,442.03 2038 120.06 314.11 2,191.23 41,575.54
2039 1.25% 113.45 295.94 2,074.88 39,497.37 2039 1.25% 123.20 | 322.15 2,249.30 © 42,701.78

0 2040 115.26 300.39 2,109.17 |  40,188.22 2040 125.10 | 326.86 2,285.33 43,424.67
2041  1.25% 118.29 ~ 308.13 2,165.49 41,285.26 2041 1.25% 128.36 335.20 2,345.63 44,594.93

i 2042 120.18 312.77 2,201.23 42,005.94 2042 130.34 340.11 2,383.17 45,348.70
2043 1.25% 123.33 ~320.80 2,259.72 43,146.26 2043 1.25% 133.72 348.76 2,445.79 46,564.66

I 2044 ] 125.29 325.62 2,296.98 43,897.99 2044 135.79 353.86 2,484.90 47,350.57
2045 1.50% 128.81  334.65 2,362.31 45,167.19 2045 1.50% 139.58 363.60 2,554.96 48,706.61

Note: The peEeﬁtage increases above only reflect increases in the base rates the Monthly average customer cost reflects increases in load growth, base rate and the utility's power service cost recovery rate.

22 REVISED



Traverse City Light ar j
Transmission Project i
July 14,2014 |
Difference
oy Cost or
Monthly Cost of | Monthly Cost of Average Monthly Cost of
Average Average Commercial Average
Year Residential Bill | Commercial Bill Demand Bill Industrial Bill
2015 Z = - -
2016 - . - -
2017 1.60 431 28.67 526.77
L 2018 1.62 4.35 28.96 532.04
2019 339 912 60.69 1,115.02
2020 3.43 9.21 61.30 1,126.17
2021 5.45 14.65 97.51 1,791.54
2022 5.50 14.80 98.49 1,809.46
2023 7.75 B 20.85 138.74 2,549.07
2024 7.83 21.06 140.13 2,574.56
I~ 2025 7.99 21.48 142.95 | 2,626.31
2026 8.07 21.70 144.38 2,652.57
2027 8.15 2191 145.82 [ 2,679.10
2028 8.23 2213 |  147.28 | 2,705.89
2029| 8.31 22.35 | 148.75 2,732.95
2030 840 | 22.58 ~150.24 2,760.28
2031 8.56 23.03 153.26 2,815.76
2032 8.65 23.26 154.79 2,843.92
2033 8.85 23.79 158.30 2,908.26
2034 8.93 24.03 159.88 2,937.35
2035 9.14 24.57 165.13 3,003.80
2036 9.23 24.82 165.13 3,033.84
2037 9.44 | 25.38 165.13 3,102.48
2038 9.53 | 25.63 170.56 3,133.51
2039 9.75 | 26.21 174.41 3,204.40
2040 984 26.47 176.16 3,236.45
2041 10.07 27.07 180.14 3,309.67
2042 10.17 27.34 181.95 3,342.77
2043 10.40 27.96 186.06 3,418.40
2044 1050, 2824 187.92 | 3,452.58
2045 10.76 28.95 192.65 3,539.41

23 REVISED




it Ll
e LA N

RS
Ny

" NAN Tain
Tt R R

W,

4
e

L
fa
xﬁf..lum_

"im

e
%

bt 18

= ]

rrped

CONSUMERS 46KV UNDERGRCUND

BOUNDARIES

TCL&P 69KV OVERHEAD

sssmmsessssm  TCLAP 69KV UNDERGROUND
CONSUMERS 46KV OVERHEAD

TRAVERSE CITY CITY LINITS

TRANSMISSION LINES




"\ TRAVERSE CITY
3y LIGHT & POWER

bl jevsing Our Exegy InYou

Capital Improvements Plan - 2013

@)

ANNUAL UPDATE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2014

Z\ TRAVERSE CITY

@ LINE IMPROVEMENTS,
L5 LIGHT & POWER EXTENSIONS, NEW SERVICES

. ____© ____________________________________

o This includes all new services, upgrades to services,
rehab work, replacement work (day-to-day work for
line crews)

o New construction

o Replacement of old, sagging services

o Rehabilitation of old poles and wires

© Replacement of poles and wires due to accidents

o Internal non-major circuit segment rebuilds

© Many of these costs are reimbursed by customers or insurance

7/17/2014

25




TRAVERSE CITY

3) LIGHT & POWER REBUILD

—

» BW-31 circuit rehabilitation (Munson Avenue — Base
of Peninsula)

| : :
. e Project designed in 2012
o Work began January 2014 utilizing TCL&P crews

e Project on hold until after Consumer’s Energy
customers are switched over to TCL&P

e Project update provided to the Board in May 2014

SOUTH SUBSTATION

#5) LIGHT & POWER

o Completion date for the South Sub Project remains at
November 14, 2014 for the distribution lines, and November
28, 2014 for the substation on LaFranier Road

o June 16, 2014: Installation of underground conduit began at
the Grand Traverse Health Department from LaFranier to the
west side of Garfield Rd. To-date 2,580 trench feet consisting
of two six-inch conduits have been installed

o July 3, 2014: Elmer’s began excavation — land is being leveled
and various trees are being removed in preparation to build
the structure and control house. Excavation is expected to be
completed by July 25, 2014.

o July 14, 2014: Construction began on the overhead lines

7/17/2014

26




P O/HTO U/G CONVERSION
et I:IF;H']‘& POWER PROJECTS

wing O Erergy Ve

» Residential underground project was planned on Spruce
Street to remove inaccessible aged line to the street right-
of-way.

o Project is designed

o Will be coordinated with other utilities to allow for
complete removal of pole line

e Project authorization request to Board by late summer with
Spring 2015 construction anticipated

TRAVERSE CITY PINESTREET OVERI{EAD
i o TOVER TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION

L

e This project is contingent upon the construction of
the pedestrian bridge, City to begin construction late
Fall 2014

e Conduit has already been installed south of Front
Street

e Conduit to be installed north of Front Street across
the river once the bridge is complete

o TCL&P tentatively plans to install conductor Spring
2015

7/17/2014

21




e STREET LIGHT SYSTEM ADDITION —
Ry HIGHI & FOwER SILVER DRIVE

ol O-

o TCL&P crews began work on this project July 14,
2014

e Crews are installing 86w LED post top decorative
. lighting fixtures on Silver Drive from Cottageview
Drive south to Silver Lake Road

e Installation is expected to be completed by August
15, 2014, but two other departments are assisting
with installation and the needs of those departments
elsewhere may affect the completion time

\exvessc eire  STREET LIGHTING (LED) SYSTEM
K- F.lGHT&POWER I{EI)LACEMEN'I‘S

Ietieg Our Esergy n

o Part of a long-range plan to convert the city’s 2,328
street lights from high pressure sodium to LED for
energy efficiency purposes

o TCL&P installed 200 LED lights at various roadway
locations throughout the city, primarily in the
business districts

» To-date 752 lights have been converted to LED

o 2014-15 the effort will be doubled to accelerate the
completion, per the Board’s direction

7/17/2014

28




LIGHT & POWER

ming O Esergy tn You

sl N N

" o The new East Hammond Substation was completed

and energized on May 27, 2014

e This substation provides a new 69kV loop feed from
the 138KkV source line to Parson Sub, Barlow Sub,
South Airport Sub (Wolverine owned) and the future
TCL&P South Sub, and then to Grand Traverse Sub —
which is the second 138kV source in the loop

EAST SUBSTATION

HASTINGS SERVICE CENTER
S o < POWER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

e Increase to building security based on a
recommendation in the Hometown Connections
audit

e Improvements included renovation to the entrance
to limit access, monitor visitors and allow for a better
functioning workspace

e Construction bid was awarded in July 2013,
renovations were completed in December 2013

7/17/2014

29




Kt tan s SUBSTATION SECURITY
e O CAMERAS

e While planned completion was by June 20, 2014,
TCL&P staff experienced unexpected, higher priority
issues pushing back the release date of the Security
Camera RFP

o Staff has resumed focus on this item and will release
an RFP in August

e — JOINT TCL&P, CITY OF TC
Lt AND DDA PROJECTS

o Bayfront Trail Lighting Phase I & II
« It was anticipated that TCL&P would be asked to financially
participate with lighting the TART trail extension through Clinch
Park. Participation was not requested. Funding removed from
2014-15 capital plan.

o Garland Street Streetscapes

« Decorative street lighting project along Garland Street did not
commence in 2013-14. Anticipated and budgeted for 2014-15
fiscal year.

7/17/2014

30




JOINT TCL&P, CITY OF TC
g e AND DDA PROJECTS

o Park Street Streetscapes
= Decorative street lighting project along Park Street did not
commence in 2013-14. Anticipated and budgeted for 2014-15
fiscal year.

o Pine Street Pedestrian Way

» Funding was included for TCL&P’s anticipated contribution to the
pedestrian bridge over the Boardman River to accommodate
installation of a new circuit to Front Street. Additional funding
was removed from 2014-15 capital plan as the Pine Street O/H to
U/G budget contains funding for this project

7/17/2014

31




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

SIX YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 2013

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

Distribution and Substation:

1.

Neoh LN

8.

Facilities:

9.

10.

11.
12.
13
14.

Line Improvements, Extensions, New Services (Annual Program) $ 825,000 954,074
Distribution Circuit Rebuild 850,000 114,970
89kV/13.8kV Distribution Substation-SOUTH 3,760,000 426,343
QOH to URG Conversion Projects 75,000 -
Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion 1,000,000 5,065
Street Lighting System Addition 100,000 27,678
Street Lighting {LED) System Replacements (Annual Program) 95,000 86,550
Transmission and Substation:
[69kV Transmission Line & Substation - EAST i 4,200,000 | 7,211,483 |
[Hasting Service Center Facility Improvements | 125,000 | 41,150 |
SCADA, Communications, and Other ltems:
|Substation Security Cameras I 75,000 | - |
Joint TCL&P, City of Traverse City, and DDA Projects
Bayfront Trail Lighting Phase | & 1 50,000 -
Garland Street Streetscapes 200,000 -
Park Street Streetscapes 100,000 -
Pine Street Pedestrian Way 655,000 -
TOTAL $ 12,100,000 8,867,313

32




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

‘-51' 1 9]2

é%i% TRAVERSE CITY

(<8 LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board
From: Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & Key Account
Date: July 14,2014

Subject: 2013 Annual Report: Energy Optimization & Renewable Energy

In 2008 the legislature passed Public Act 295, also known as the “Clean, Renewable and Efficient
Energy Act,” which requires all utilities to assist customers in improving their electric energy
efficiency through energy optimization programs; and further requires all utilities to increase the
amount of renewable energy in its generation portfolios.

Through the Michigan Public Power Agency, TCL&P filed its required reports for energy
optimization and renewable energy to the Michigan Public Service Commission on May 31, 2014
and June 30, 2014, respectively.

Energy Optimization

In 2013, TCL&P achieved a savings of nearly 2.8 million kilowatt hours (kWhs) through the utility’s
energy efficiency programs, exceeding the state-mandated goal by 30% and saving enough electricity
to power approximately 428 Traverse City area homes for an entire year. Between TCL&P’s
residential and commercial programs, the estimated demand reduction is 483 kilowatts (kW).

The program offered many opportunities for customers to save energy and money on their utility
bills. Those opportunities included:
e Free compact fluorescent light (CFL) bulbs
e  Coupons for discounted LED holiday light sets
e Incentives for purchasing ENERGY STAR appliances and recycling old, inefficient
refrigerators, freezers, room air conditioners, and dehumidifiers
¢  Home energy assessments (audits)
¢  Rebates for purchasing a share in TCL&P’s Community Solar Project — the first of its kind
in Michigan
. Income qualified customers received home encrgy assessments and access to resources to
make recommended energy saving upgrades
*  Business customers were offered incentives for upgrading to equipment with greater energy
etficiency, including lighting, motors, air systems, refrigeration, HVAC units and building
management systems

Staff is currently developing a Request for Qualifications to seek assistance with developing a long-
term Energy Efficiency Plan that will focus on managing load growth aimed at reducing on-peak
demand. Consistent with the utility’s Strategic Plan, it is staffs hope that this Plan will be ready for
Board adoption by early 2015, so implementation of the Plans recommendations can be included in
the 2015-16 budget.

33




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

Renewable Energy

In addition to helping Michigan residents become more energy efficient, Public Act 295 also requires
Michigan utilities to acquire 10% renewable energy by 2015. TCL&P’s successes to-date in meeting
the state-mandated renewable energy goal include:

A long-term agreement to buy electricity that is generated from the Heritage Stoney
Corners wind farm. In 2013, 25,056,192 kWh of wind energy was produced from this
agreement which is equivalent to powering approximately 3,831 Traverse City area homes
for an entire year.

A long-term agreement to buy electricity that is generated from the Granger landfill gas
facility. In 2013, 7,583,950 kWh of landfill gas energy was produced for TCL&P from this
agreement which is equivalent to powering approximately 1,160 Traverse City area homes
for an entire year.

Owning and operating the country’s largest utility grade wind turbine when it was installed
in 1996. At 600 kilowatts, it is small in comparison to today’s larger units. Even though
the unit was down for repairs or running at half power during a period of the year, it still
produced 350,422 kWh of wind energy, which is equivalent to powering 54 Traverse City
area homes for an entire year.

For the 2013 reporting period, TCL&P generated or acquired 32,990,564 kilowatt hours of
renewable energy. During this timeframe, TCL&P’s renewable energy was 11.1% of its total retail
electric sales and TCL&P anticipates this percentage to continue to rise with the increase in landfill
gas energy production.

Cost to Customers

TCL&P currently does not charge its customers for either the Energy Optimization or Renewable
Energy Plan expenses as allowed by Public Act 295.

The 2013 itemized cost to a residential customer for implementing the Energy
Optimization program requirements was $0.72 per month

The 2013 itemized monthly surcharge for a TCL&P residential customer for the Renewable
Energy Plan requirements under Public Act 295 was $0.00.

The average electric residential customer is expected to save $3.21 each month of the
Energy Optimization program’s life.

For the average Michigan residential customer, renewable energy is estimated to avoid
$3.90 per month of new coal-fired generation costs.

The Michigan Public Service Commission’s annual report on renewable energy can be
viewed at the following website: www.michigan.gov/mpsc.

34




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

2013 Annual Report
Energy Optimization

R R T P B L s I L P e s P T

Thursday, July 17, 2014

Program Results

“\ TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

tmeeming Our Energy 1 ¥ou

2013 Program Summary

» 2013 Goal: 1% kWh sales

o Equal to 2.15 million kWh (takes into consideration
the program rollovers from 2012)

« TCL&P Claimed Savings: 2.9 million kWh

« TCL&P Verified Savings (# reported to MPSC):
2.7 million kWh

» 30% above goal

» Saved enough energy in 2013 to annually power 428
TC area homes

+ Spent $384,678 on program implementation,
education and customer incentives

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

Ievteting Our Eergy I You

50




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

Residential - Low Income

+ Customer must be at or below 200% of the Federal
Poverty Level to participate
» Provided 16 whole-home energy assessments
through TC Saves including:
= Upgraded 82 lights to CFLs
o Installed 16 LED nightlights
= Installed 5 programmable thermostats
= Replaced and recycled 11 refrigerators
= Also installed pipe wrap, low flow shower heads, and
kitchen and bathroom aerators

TRAVERSE CITY
v/ LIGHT & POWER

Errrstog Our E~ergy In Fou

Thursday, July 17, 2014

Residential - Efficient Lighting

» Distributed 3,950 CFLs

» Installed 81 smart power strips

o Installed 41 programmable
thermostats

» Distributed 47 LED nightlights

» 54 customers took advantage of
discounted LED holiday lights

N\ TRAVERSE cITY
') LIGHT & POWER

BB g Cur Eargy bn Vo

36




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

Residential - Appliance Recycling

 Recycled 22 dehumidifiers and 19
room air conditioning units
= $15 customer rebate

» Picked up and recycled 167
refrigerators and freezers
o $60 customer rebate

TRAVERSE CITY

/ LIGHT & POWER

S .

wwamiog Our Evergy b ¥os

RS SRR a0 1)

Residential - Efficient Appliance & HVAC

 Customers received a rebate
for purchasing efficient
appliances, ENERGY STAR
equipment and HVAC units

» 80 customers took advantage
of this program

» $8,055 distributed in
customer incentives

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

BB g Cur Bargy 1 Yo

Thursday, July 17, 2014

37




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

Residential - Pilot

o Community Solar Project — 7
Solar Up North (SUN) Alliance [y

¢ 33 customers participated, :
purchasing 79 panels LE comnuntySolo rojc

» Each customer received a $75 S
rebate per panel
» Credit on customer’s monthly S
bill for their panel output '-: {/ 3\):-
et
TRAVERSE CITY SUNALI.I[\i\!CE

'/ LIGHT & POWER

tmerazing Our Enargy 11 ¥00

goh

Thursday, July 17, 2014

Residential and C&l - Education

» Bill inserts g&g

» Bill taglines NPT

» Direct mailers L A

« Promotional flyers and
posters

» TC Saves

+ Cherry Festival Green
Energy Day

TRAVERSE CITY

') LIGHT & POWER

Imasrng Ouf Erersy b You

38




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

e,

C&l - Prescriptive

+ 40 completed projects
* 1,084,745 kWh in savings
* $42,793.68 distributed in
customer incentives
o Incentives ranged from $60
to $7,000

U2\ tmaverse ciTv
/ LIGHT & POWER

R oo Our Energy 10 You

Thursday, July 17, 2014

C&l - Custom

« 15 completed projects

816,987 kWh in savings
» $65,062.95 distributed in
customer incentives
= Incentives ranged from
$265 to $15,000

% TRAVERSE CITY

39




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

C&l - Pilot

» Wind turbine/solar
energy unit at
entrance to Clinch
Park

» Power generated feeds
back into the grid to
offset electric for snow |
melt and lighting

=\ TRAVERSE ciTy
LIGHT & POWER

Bl norming Our Energy 11 W

o e e e R e e

Thursday, July 17, 2014

s

C&l - Small Business Direct Install

« Targeted small businesses

» Direct Install Team installed energy saving
products such as CFLs, LED exit signs, vending
machine controls and programmable
thermostats

+ 53 small businesses participated

« Achieved 218,847 kWh in savings

) TRAVERSE CITY
v/ LIGHT & POWER

M asing Ous Esersy b ¥ou

40




2012 Energy Optimization

Program Results

2014 Long Term Energy Plan

» Included in Strategic Plan

» Staff has developed an RFQ to be released
August 2014

» Once submissions are received, TCL&P’s review
committee (staff and board members) will select
qualified consultants to submit RFP

 Consultant to be selected October 2014

» New Plan implementation to begin in early 2015

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

B o oieg O Ereey b vsa

Thursday, July 17, 2014

41




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JULY 22, 2014

RAVERSE CITY

IGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller kwd
Date: July 3, 2014

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the third quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund:

As of March 31, 2014 (75% through the fiscal year) operating revenues are 81.9% of budgeted operating
revenues, The Board’s action to remove the cap on the Power Cost Recovery Rate (PCR) as of October 1, 2013
has resulted in the overall increase in revenues over the prior year.

Total operating expenses are at 73.2% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget. Overall purchased
power costs are at 73.7% of budget. Other expense categories are at or under budget through the third quarter.
Transmission expense is under budget due to the allocation factor of Attachment O being lower than expected
and no contingent maintenance on the transmission lines, Metering and Customer Service Distribution are under
budget, because the distribution of human resource services was not recorded along with meter reading wages
being distributed to other departments based on actual work performed. Conservation and Public Services is
significantly under budget at 28.7% because of the additional allocation of PA 295 funds during the budget
process that will not be expended until a plan is developed in the 2014-2015 fiscal year. General Administration
expense is under budget because of positions not being filled.

Net income through the third quarter is $3.48 million, which is ahead of budget.

Fiber Fund:

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are on-budget while expenses are under budget (favorable). Net income of $38,974
is 61.4% of budget through March. The fund has positive cash flow and may begin reimbursements to the
electric utility fund for the initial investment of the backbone fiber network.

Total operating expenses are at 83.7% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget. Supervision and
Maintenance have exceeded budget estimates slightly because of the assistance provided to GTACS in starting
up their connection to our fiber network, which is offset by the reimbursements received in non-operating
revenues.

42




TRAVERSE CIiTY LIGHT & POWER
Balance Sheet
313172014

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Customer (net of allowance)
Accrued interest

Taxes

Other
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Long-term assets

Long-term advances & OPEB assels
Land and land improvements

Construction in progress
Capital assets, net

Total tong-term assets

Total assets

Total Cash & Investments §

Current liabilities

$2,556,877 Accounts payable $1,689,882
18,715,595 Customer deposits & credils 137,958
Accrued expenses & other liabilities 530,939
4,038,790 Due to primary government 159,866
64,836
0 Total current liabilities 2,518,645
292,222
1,729,920 Long-term liabilities
29,251 Compensated absences 230,349
27,427,490 Total liahilities 2,748,994
Net assets
1,030,284 Invested in capital assets 47,058,773
1,391,296 Unrestricted 25,708,780
8,752,467
36,915,010 Total net assets 72,767,553
48,389,057
$75,516,547 Total liabilities and net assets $75,516,547

21,272,471.09

Difference $

43




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
Schedule of Revenues & Expenses - Budget and Actual

For the Month Ended March 31, 2014

Operating revenues - sales
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Generation expense:
Purchased power
Stoney corners-wind energy
Combustion turbine
Campbell/belle river
Landfill gas
Other operations & maintenance

Total generation expenses

Distribution expense:
Operations & maintenance

Transmission expense:
Operations & maintenance

Other operating expense:
Metering & customer accounting
Conservation & public services
General administration
Insurance
Depreciation expense
City fee
Total other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating income/{loss)

Other revenues/(expenses):
Non-operating revenues
Non-operating expenses

Net income

2280,933 $ 24,579,041 $ 29,971,000 82.0%
197,974 2,175,846 2,704,000 80.5%
2,478,907 26,754,887 32,675,000 81.9%
583,208 4,878,597 6,440,000 75.8%
261,593 2,157,671 2,970,000 72.6%
224,506 2,206,231 3,978,000 55.5%
1,052,272 8,035,654 8,840,000 90.9%
24,792 281,580 460,000 61.2%
75,492 196,240 78,000 251.6%
2,221,863 17,755,973 22,766,000 78.0%
289,256 2,485,172 3,470,000 71.6%
38,825 238,734 420,900 56.7%
24,698 289,117 573,400 50.4%
24,740 294,670 1,027,750 28.7%
63,219 635,102 1,163,950 54.6%
5,655 42,493 66,350 64.0%
156,574 1,409,250 1,982,000 71.1%
120,000 1,080,000 1,634,700 66.1%
394,886 3,750,632 6,448,150 58.2%
2,944,830 24,230,511 33,105,050 73.2%
(465,923) 2,524,376 (430,050) -587.0%
215,904 957,481 430,050 222.6%
0 0 0
(250,019) $ 3,481,858 $ -

44




(L628) o6'izheEL'y $ (L9LIS/PZ'L) ¢ 9zese'ler'e $ (Lew) Ze'col'egl ¢ (BLZeL'Ber) ¢ (Lz'sLo'osz)  § sLoU| 19N
(L) (co'66V'¥S6'L) § £O0TLOGRL'9Z $ OFZILS0SZPC & LG £OQLZ'eSL  $ ZZTIO'98L'T S SR0e8'PYET $ sosusdxd |ejoL
£7 ¥l '6EF 95 TEROE'GLF'T o0'PrL'LES'T Z2Z Or'6LL'D ¥6'6801'9/Z ¥£'622'282 JBuo
(#'ez) (E8'p/8'E6L) SP'9.6'828 Z29'10L'GE9 (¥2z) {g9'00£'8}) £6'6L5L8 SZ'BLT'EY Lofelsiuiwpy
{z'L8) (£8'980'cig’)) | 61954495 1 96°'698'v62 £r9 BE'T89'6 79'/60°61 LO'OvL'YE SBOIAI3S DlqNe] B UOHBAIBSUDD
(ree) {pgeee'es) 62’ LSP'LLE EFLLL'6RZ (0es) (cL'8¥8'L2) P2 LIPS 'ES 60°869'+2Z Buiunoooy Jawoysng g Bullalen
(02L) {LL'v8.'ep) £8'/26'482 TLE8/'882 £'89 08'68L'G1 6E'G90'E2 BL'5Z8'8E JUEIN B SUojelad( UOISSISURLL
{ry) (0s'088'%LL) 84Z51'009'Z 62ZLL'SEP'T (+'a4) (60°042'99) Q€926 veE LT95¢'682 B 2 suoReIsdp uosngusig
{gL) (ro'208'167) $| 96 L¥R'4rP0'8l $ | Z8EL6'S5LLL $ ] 0T 954086  $[riees'ess’l $[ 04298122’ $ | BN g suolesad Uoljeiaua
el

LLL QE'EZB'PLLC § SEOVPIEB'YT § 9989ETLLLT S §FiL GLEBE'PE  $ EP'BTP'IPE'T S 851LL8'VEIT B SBNUDASY (€101
L4 8EELG YL or'169'0/8'L FFOZ'SL0'T 9'ig LLBPT're LY B YEL 8887, '881 senusAsy OSIN
(egt) (rOZTLS'S) SOEHY LY LO'LEB'SE W/AICH - - - s[ejuay a|od
(8'9¢) (69°218) 65222'2 06'F0F'L iO/AICGH - - - s8jeqay B spuney
(0'g¢g) (£4180'61) GL'E€0L'BE 2022972 6.2 {(£1€48) 68LLL'E ZLFOE'Z SLUODU| SNOBUE||30SII
(6'z¢g) {rrsiv'el) 068°080'0S 9r'SLY'EE (858 (zrees's) Zr'GOE'S 00°0/F Gelog Jo SIS
I or 08 0529 96'2F L (GooL)  |logzo) 0629 - $1g9Q peg 0 AaA0oay
£L2EE SEVLL'OLY Z0°/ET'ETL LE'15E'6ES 9tzt't | ooogzest 95'ZET L)L 95215'0L2 syusLgsinguiay

O/AIC# | 09°19G'SS - 09'496'eg i0AIT# - - - SISy paxid O JES
LE2) 8L LFO'ET 000126l 9L /58'r 00 - 00GL¥'L 00°GLF'L soljjedoy g sy
0l LG 188l 8E'Z66'FOL 69'€/2'€8Z (g/6) (zg0.£'s) 09/82'6 B8LOLE'E sbujuieg puspinid g ISBIB|
rGLL LZ /2908 £./£5'0Z 6791 /G fooor)  |lo0gse'L) 0065%'L 000 Buiggor g asipueydapy
(gL (gegLs) LLOLY'bY el Leg'sy 98y I8PLL'T #6'65E'Y 18'0/F'9 SIUN0osIg palayod
gt Or'680'Z £1'1.18'85 glL'266'09 (82) {9£°905) 867879 79'186'G se[es b pieA
201 20'Le5'sL L/B'E80'OPL 86'799'L9) (692) {£254EY) Z8LrT'oL 65'008'LL sejeg Buyb 1eesg
£6 8F'125'6L 518602 £0'665'82¢ g'6r 58°158'9 BY'2ZR'EL PE¥L9'02 sajeg Ajuoyiny aland
£8 A AN T CE6'80.L'9 8£'840'997'L S8l 8867 LTI 8. 9£6'959 99'9LF'8LL $3[eS [BLISNpU|
L8 $'9L0'0G6 /B8'658°996'0L 1'8/8'018'LL 61 18L¥E'02 SE'E9S'ZO0 L | Z24°L16'280'L S9eg [BIIBLIWCD
201 L8¥S8'6LY L8ZLY'Yor'y O LoV Y'Y (90L) (65 29z ) 66 v 9Zr 0r'Z80'L8E SS|BS [BIUSpISTY

0N - - - WOAICH - - - JaUI0 - Juelo BjE1g

iO/AICH - $] - $i - $ | ionias - g - $| - 3 sjuglo [Bi9pa4

paledwos) sasuadxy p anusAsy
d3IAMOd 2 LHOIT ALID ISHIAVEL

45



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
FIBER FUND
Balance Sheet
313112014

ASSETS LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current assets Current liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents $294,346 Accounts payable $0

Accounts receivable 3,118 Due to cther funds 10,402

Prepaid [nsurance 229 Deferred revenue 13,200
Total current assets 297,693 Total liahilities 23,602
Long-term assets Net assets

Construction in prograss 101,666 Contribution from other funds 1,208,876

Capital assets, net 1,223,016 Unrestricted fund balance 389,898
Total long-term assets 1,324,682 Total net assets 1,598,774
Total assets $1,622,375 Total liabilities and net assets $1,622,375

46




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
FIBER FUND
Schedule of Revenues & Expenses - Budget and Actual
For the Month Ended March 31, 2014

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 19,350 §$ 172,940 § 229,000 75.5%

Total operating revenues 19,350 172,240 229,000 75.5%

Operating expenses:

Office & operating supplies - 1,178 2,000 58.9%
Supervision & maintenance 8,445 50,786 41,000 123.9%
Overhead & underground lines 553 12,450 16,000 77.8%
Customer installations 471 471 6,500 7.2%
Termination boxes 490 18,008 16,500 109.1%
Tools - - 150 0.0%
Professional & Contractual Svcs. - 1,065 -
Legal Services - 3,655 -
City fee - . 10,100 0.0%
Professional development - - 2,150 0.0%
Insurance 76 564 1,000 56.4%
Repairs and Maintenance - - 500 0.0%
Depreciation expense 7,269 65,417 87,600 74.7%
Total operating expenses 17,304 153,594 183,500 83.7%
Operating income/(loss) 2,046 19,346 45,500 42.5%
Non-operating revenues:
Reimbursements - 19,628 18,000 109.0%
Net income $ 2,046 $ 38,974 $ 63,500 61.4%

47




